
 

City of Sand Point Council Meeting 
 

 

 

Workshop: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 – 2:00 p.m. 

Meeting: Tuesday, February 10, 2015 – 7:00 p.m. 



 

CALL TO ORDER 



 

ROLL CALL 



  

THERE IS A WORKSHOP FOR THIS MEETING AT 2 P.M. – SAME DAY IN CITY CHAMBERS 

  
POSTED 02/04/15 

 

      CITY OF SAND POINT 
(packet will be available on website February 6, 

2015 www.sandpointak.com ) 

 

 

 

  MAYOR 
Mayor Glen Gardner Jr. - Office Exp. 2017 

   
     

COUNCIL MEMBERS 
Danny Cumberlidge Seat A - Exp. 2016 

Allan Starnes  Seat B - Exp. 2017  

Shirley Brown   Seat C - Exp. 2016 

Jack Foster Jr.   Seat D - Exp. 2017       

Marita Gundersen Seat E -  Exp. 2015 

Rayette McGlashan  Seat F - Exp. 2015

SAND POINT CITY COUNCIL 

MEETING AGENDA 

CITY CHAMBERS 
 

Regular Meeting          Tuesday, February 10, 2015   7:00 pm 
       

CALL TO ORDER 

ROLL CALL 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

CONSENT AGENDA: 

1.  Minutes: Minutes of Regular Meeting on January 13, 2015 

 

       REPORTS: 

1. Finance Officer 

2. Administrator 

3. DPS Director 

4. Fire Chief  

5. Public Works Director 

6. Harbor Master 

7. Student Representative 

 

   HEARINGS, ORDINANCES AND RESOLUTIONS: 

1. Ordinance 2015-02: Marijuana Possession and Definitions 

2. Resolution 15-05: Water and Sewer Projects 

3. Resolution 15-06: Revenue Sharing 

 

OLD BUSINESS: 

1.  City Building Roof 

2.  Maintenance Vehicle 

 

       NEW BUSINESS 

1. QTT Donation Request 

2. Equipment Rental Rates 

3. Health Plan – Medical Waiver 

4. SWAMC Conference 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 

       COUNCIL COMMENTS 

       ADJOURNMENT      

http://www.sandpointak.com/


  1 Sand Point City Council  

Meeting Minutes 

January 13, 2015 
  

 

SAND POINT CITY COUNCIL 

Regular Meeting Minutes  

Tuesday, January 13, 2015 

_________________________________________________________________________________________ 

CALL TO ORDER: 

The regular meeting of the Sand Point City Council was held Tuesday, January 13, 2015, in the Sand Point Council 

Chambers.  Mayor Glen Gardner Jr. called the meeting to order at 7:05 p.m. 

 

ROLL CALL: 

Glen Gardner Jr.   Mayor  Present 

Danny Cumberlidge  Seat A  Absent - Excused 

Allan Starnes     Seat B      Present 

Shirley Brown    Seat C  Present 

Jack Foster Jr.    Seat D    Absent - Excused 

Marita Gundersen   Seat E  Present  

Rayette McGlashan  Seat F  Present 

 

A quorum was established. 

  

Staff in attendance: 

Andy Varner, Administrator  

Shannon Sommer, City Clerk  

Krista Galvin, Finance Officer - Absent - Excused 

John Lucking Jr., Police Chief - Absent - Excused 

David Stokes, Public Works Director 

Richard Kochuten Sr., Harbor Master 

Allen Hill, Water/Sewer Director 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA: 

Mayor Glen Gardner Jr. made a motion to approve the agenda. 

MOTION:   Councilperson Shirley Brown made a motion to adopt the agenda. 

SECOND:     Councilperson Allan Starnes seconded the motion. 

VOTE:           Motion passed unanimously.  

 

APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA: 

1. Minutes of December 9, 2014 Regular Meeting Minutes. 

Mayor Glen Gardner Jr. requested a motion to approve the consent agenda. 

MOTION:     Councilperson Shirley Brown made a motion to approve the consent agenda with the correction on 

page 4 under New Business. 

SECOND:     Councilperson Rayette McGlashan seconded the motion. 

VOTE:          Motion passed unanimously.  

 

REPORTS: 

Finance Officer- Krista Galvin 

Finance Officer Krista Gavin’s report is in the packet. 

 

Administrator - Andy Varner 

Dock Replacement 

He spoke with Mark Hickey; the City may still have to match some monies. 

 

AEA-PCE Community Facilities 

Under FYI there is a letter stating we were approved for the first 3 community facility (CF) applications that we 

submitted to the Alaska Energy Authority for PCE reimbursement.  There are still 10 applications pending. 

 



  2 Sand Point City Council  

Meeting Minutes 

January 13, 2015 
  

 

Dept. of Public Safety/EMS 

He spoke with EAT's Executive Director Jennifer Harrison and they are still working with their legal team to 

formalize an ambulance reimbursement MOA with the City. 

 

Website 

He and City Clerk Shannon Sommer have been working on the City's new website www.sandpointak.com, and are 

making more accessible.  He encouraged everyone to visit the site. 

 

Leave 

He will be visiting family January 30-February 5. 

 

Invite 

The City sent an invite to Senator Walker's schedule for him to do a join trip between King Cove and Sand Point, 

when he goes to look at their road. 

 

Department of Public Safety - Chief John Lucking Jr.  

Police Chief John Lucking, Jr. report is in the packet. 

 

Public Works Director – David Stokes 

Public Works Director David Stokes reported he just returned, they have a full crew, waiting on parts to arrive to 

work on a broken down Dump Truck, and they are doing a lot of grading on the harbor road.    

 

Fire Department 

He fixed a couple dead batteries in the Fire Truck and is expecting the 2015 certificates.    

 

Harbor Master - Richard Kochuten Sr. 

Harbor Master Richard Kochuten, Sr. reported everything is quiet and they are maintaining and repairing equipment.  

Building Maintenance Kenneth Spjut has been working in the harbor house putting new flooring in.  He is waiting 

on word from the Travelift inspector when he will be arriving in Sand Point for an inspection.  The harbor crew 

plans on working on the city dock soon, weather permitting. 

 

Mayor Gardner stated Building Maintenance Spjut will be remodeling the bathrooms in the harbor house this spring. 

 

Student Representative – Colten Mack 

Student Representative Colten Mack was not available due to playing Basketball in the Trident Tip Off Tournament. 

 

HEARINGS, ORDINANCES, AND RESOLUTIONS:  
1. Ordinance 2015-10: Public Smoking – 1

st
 Reading 

MOTION:   No Councilperson made a motion to put Ordinance 2015-01: Public Smoking on the floor for 1
st
 

reading.  Therefore, no action taken. 

 

2. Resolution 15-01: City Dock 

MOTION:   Councilperson Rayette McGlashan made a motion to adopt Resolution 15-01: City Dock. 

SECOND:     Councilperson Shirley Brown seconded the motion. 

VOTE:          Motion passed unanimously. 

 

3. Resolution 15-02: Health Care Insurance 

Resolution postponed until February’s Agenda. 

 

4. Resolution 15-03: Opposed AINMS 

MOTION:   Councilperson Shirley Brown made a motion to adopt Resolution 15-03: Opposed AINMS. 

SECOND:     Councilperson Allan Starnes seconded the motion. 

VOTE:         Motion passed unanimously. 

 

http://www.sandpointak.com/


  3 Sand Point City Council  

Meeting Minutes 

January 13, 2015 
  

 

5. Resolution 15-04: Shared Fisheries 

MOTION:   Councilperson Rayette McGlashan made a motion to put to adopt Resolution 15-04: Shared Fisheries. 

SECOND:     Councilperson Marita Gundersen seconded the motion. 

VOTE:          Motion passed unanimously. 

 

OLD BUSINESS: None. 

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. City Building Roof 

Mayor Gardner will contact council members with quotes. 

 

2. Maintenance Vehicle 

Mayor Gardner will work with Public Works Director Stokes and contact council members with quotes. 

 

3. Equipment Rental Rates 

Equipment Rental Rates postponed until February’s Agenda. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENTS:  
Water & Sewer Supervisor Allen Hill introduced Brad Blackstone with Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium 

(ANTHC), and Steve Evavold with DEC.  Mr. Blackstone introduced himself and began talking about that Sand 

Point was picked for funding for a Sewer Enhancement Program.  The City's sewer outfall line has broken off 

several years ago and this project will propose a new line.  They have a design and construction staff with they can 

bring to communities but he explained the City may want to administer the grant funds and do a RFP, he will leave 

it up to the Council for that option and they are there to serve the community the best they can.  Mr. Evavold 

introduced himself and stated he has been working with Water & Sewer Supervisor Hill thru email, phone, etc.  He 

explained the plant needs updates; he will help out as much as he can.  Administrator Varner asked Mr. Evavold 

what the time frame looks like, Mr. Evavold responded they are looking at a time frame of 2016.   

 

COUNCIL COMMENTS:  
Councilperson Shirley Brown asked where the recycling dumpsters were now located.  Public Works Director 

Stokes replied they have been moved to the back of the recycling center and teen center. 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

MOTION:      Councilperson Rayette McGlashan made a motion to adjourn. 

SECOND:      Councilperson Shirley Brown seconded the motion. 

 

The meeting adjourned at 7:43 PM. 

 

  _________________________________ 

                                                                              Glen Gardner Jr., Mayor        

 

ATTEST: 

                    

_________________________________                                                                 

Shannon Sommer, City Clerk 

 



 

REPORTS 



 

 

FINANCE OFFICER 



FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15
June 83,738.35    89,371.73    217,340.55  July 98,195.23   156,655.84    121,976.31 
July 66,700.34    128,368.96  139,818.08  August 68,242.04   137,107.36    48,575.15   

August 47,508.96    78,457.48    117,033.81  September 71,393.24   53,307.44      64,362.76   
September 37,286.18    80,983.80    79,043.91    October 74,240.08   41,610.64      32,213.32   

October 43,372.78    46,603.74    74,929.24    November 5,675.98     22,386.53      7,214.11     
November 11,430.85    8,421.65      10,518.19    December 1,305.30     5,337.01        372.97        
December 106.26         6.03             92.61           January 39,379.85   43,650.07      -              

January 23,074.95    70,721.63    61,025.94    February 33,190.81   53,363.98      -              
February 46,534.36    91,693.11    80,458.14    March 78,691.30   65,073.23      -              

March 63,330.92    79,640.86    103,148.90  April 24,930.11   36,514.38      -              
April 33,548.59    25,898.74    29,908.61    May 16,846.94   21,292.12      -              
May 44,056.75    59,813.76    26,019.65    June 129,015.93 64,462.43      -              

Total 500,689.29  759,981.49  939,337.63  641,106.81 700,761.03    274,714.62 

FY10 FY11 FY12 FY13 FY14 FY15
June 69,401.30    73,942.45    96,304.83    July 101,206.98 82,934.73      104,161.56 
July 73,865.38    76,586.24    98,121.00    August 76,571.79   73,136.15      88,102.14   

August 58,298.67    59,031.08    77,436.07    September 194,900.07 75,647.72      112,966.81 
September 55,753.91    66,560.56    89,882.29    October 85,720.47   69,251.83      81,163.42   

October 53,344.13    55,806.67    93,787.49    November 90,575.50   46,816.20      43,535.59   
November 35,246.04    37,712.73    34,431.36    December 44,723.29   52,116.25      36,898.10   
December 43,600.69    46,246.45    59,315.91    January 62,428.48   80,977.40      -              

January 54,916.11    51,438.40    72,690.48    February 57,547.22   84,035.36      -              
February 56,707.52    66,045.08    68,392.21    March 75,307.36   126,325.95    -              

March 62,502.76    109,345.24  83,181.02    April 65,117.67   86,407.71      -              
April 60,564.66    59,248.18    72,659.25    May 58,775.64   70,189.92      -              
May 48,743.68    50,158.53    56,084.05    June 80,381.46   98,758.26      -              

Total 672,944.85  752,121.61  902,285.96  993,255.93 946,597.48    466,827.62 
TDX Fines (150,000.00)  

796,597.48    

City of Sand Point
Raw Fish Tax Revenue

Sales Tax Revenue



City of Sand Point
Bank Balance
Date

Bank Account Number 12/31/2014 Date

Key Bank 50-20-500-0025757 2,465,240.42     

Wells Fargo - General 4121344139 234,048.46        

Wells Fargo - Bingo Fund 4121344147 205,163.51        

Wells Fargo - Silver Salmon Fund 4121344154 16,842.09           

Balance



*Expenditure Guideline-No Enc Sum©

02/05/15 9:32 AM

Page 1

Current Period: DECEMBER 14-15

CITY OF SAND POINT

14-15 DECEMBER

YTD Balance
% of 

YTD

14-15

YTD Budget MTD AmtYTD Amt

14-15

 GENERAL FUND

 LEGISLATIVE $150,600.00 $70,465.08 $80,134.92 46.79%$11,125.65

 ADMINISTRATION $1,082,908.00 $485,188.83 $597,719.17 44.80%$62,469.05

 PARKS AND RECREATION $41,179.00 $13,795.13 $27,383.87 33.50%$2,828.37

 ANIMAL CONTROL $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 PUBLIC SAFETY $666,250.00 $227,517.87 $438,732.13 34.15%$31,663.61

 PUBLIC WORKS $631,289.00 $301,409.30 $329,879.70 47.75%$37,833.23

 FACILITIES $453,968.00 $150,114.73 $303,853.27 33.07%$14,689.38

 TRANSFER PAYMENTS $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  GENERAL FUND $3,026,194.00 $1,248,490.94 $1,777,703.06 41.26%$160,609.29

 BINGO FUND

 ADMINISTRATION $497,404.00 $269,712.75 $227,691.25 54.22%$36,141.22

Total  BINGO FUND $497,404.00 $269,712.75 $227,691.25 54.22%$36,141.22

 SILVER SALMON DERBY

 FIRE $25,750.00 $16,352.94 $9,397.06 63.51%$0.00

Total  SILVER SALMON DERBY $25,750.00 $16,352.94 $9,397.06 63.51%$0.00

 CLINIC OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE

 ADMINISTRATION $32,777.00 $31,971.00 $806.00 97.54%$0.00

Total  CLINIC OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE $32,777.00 $31,971.00 $806.00 97.54%$0.00

 WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS

 WATER/SEWER $357,803.00 $105,562.09 $252,240.91 29.50%$15,032.25

Total  WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS $357,803.00 $105,562.09 $252,240.91 29.50%$15,032.25

 HARBOR/PORT OPERATIONS

 HARBOR $496,500.00 $320,208.07 $176,291.93 64.49%$42,033.32

Total  HARBOR/PORT OPERATIONS $496,500.00 $320,208.07 $176,291.93 64.49%$42,033.32

 REFUSE COLLECTION

 PUBLIC WORKS $154,179.00 $79,238.35 $74,940.65 51.39%$12,610.87

Total  REFUSE COLLECTION $154,179.00 $79,238.35 $74,940.65 51.39%$12,610.87

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD & PAVING PROJ

 ADMINISTRATION $2,574,000.00 $2,886,318.19 -$312,318.19 112.13%$13,341.95

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD & PAVING PROJ $2,574,000.00 $2,886,318.19 -$312,318.19 112.13%$13,341.95

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CITY OF SP

 ADMINISTRATION $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CITY OF SP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CSP

 ADMINISTRATION $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CSP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 HARBOR CONSTRUCTION

 HARBOR $0.00 $469,045.64 -$469,045.64 0.00%$57,874.10

Total  HARBOR CONSTRUCTION $0.00 $469,045.64 -$469,045.64 0.00%$57,874.10

Report Total $7,164,607.00 $5,426,899.97 $1,737,707.03 75.75%$337,643.00



YTD Budget

*Revenue Guideline-Alt Code©

02/05/15 9:34 AM

Page 1

Current Period: DECEMBER 14-15

CITY OF SAND POINT

14-15 DECEMBER

YTD Balance

% of 

YTD

14-15

YTD Amt MTD Amt

14-15

 GENERAL FUND

 

Active $0.00 $129.12 -$129.12 0.00%$21.20R 01-022 AK MUNICI LEAGUE INVES

Active $490,267.00 $0.00 $490,267.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-200 INTEREST/RESTRICTED

Active $1,000.00 $20.11 $979.89 2.01%$0.00R 01-202 FINES AND PENALTYS

Active $40,000.00 $78,756.25 -$38,756.25 196.89%$1,786.63R 01-203 OTHER REVENUE

Active $900,000.00 $528,687.78 $371,312.22 58.74%$43,535.59R 01-205 4% SALES TAX

Active $800,000.00 $338,804.08 $461,195.92 42.35%$7,214.11R 01-213 RAW FISH TAX

Active $1,000.00 $170.05 $829.95 17.01%$50.09R 01-214 FINE-LATE SALES TAX

Active $15,000.00 $10,582.46 $4,417.54 70.55%$666.35R 01-217 7% B & B Tax

Active $150,000.00 $0.00 $150,000.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-225 PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAX

Active $4,500.00 $0.00 $4,500.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-226 EVENT COSTS

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-227 ACO REGISTRATION

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-229 EASTER EGG HUNT

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-230 DONATIONS

Active $0.00 $2,000.00 -$2,000.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-232 EMS FUND

Active $2,500.00 $375.00 $2,125.00 15.00%$0.00R 01-233 BUSINESS LIC. FEE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-234 SB 46 PERS RELIEF

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-236 SAND POINT SWEATSHIR

Active $20,000.00 $0.00 $20,000.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-238 ANCHORAGE OFFICE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-239 AEB FY12 COMMUNITY GR

Active $143,876.00 $144,641.00 -$765.00 100.53%$0.00R 01-250 STATE REVENUE SHARIN

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-254 STATE OF ALASKA/DCED 

Active $7,500.00 $0.00 $7,500.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-257 REVENUE--FEDERAL GOV

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-260 STATE BUSINESS LICENS

Active $45,000.00 $0.00 $45,000.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-265 STATE PROCESSORS TAX

Active $260,000.00 $241,316.26 $18,683.74 92.81%$0.00R 01-266 ExT FISH TAX SHARING

Active $15,000.00 $12,474.85 $2,525.15 83.17%$0.00R 01-285 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

Active $125,000.00 $63,661.00 $61,339.00 50.93%$1,400.00R 01-291 BUILDING RENTALS

Active $10,500.00 $6,650.00 $3,850.00 63.33%$6,650.00R 01-293 LIBRARY GRANT

Active $1,000.00 $435.00 $565.00 43.50%$0.00R 01-297 POLICE MISC REVENUE

Active $500.00 $0.00 $500.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-298 EMS MISC REVENUE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-302 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD CON

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 01-809 DMVA-DHS&EM - KSDP GR

Total  $3,033,143.00 $1,428,702.96 $1,604,440.04 47.10%$61,323.97

Total  GENERAL FUND $3,033,143.00 $1,428,702.96 $1,604,440.04 47.10%$61,323.97

 BINGO FUND

 

Active $42,104.00 $0.00 $42,104.00 0.00%$0.00R 02-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 02-202 FINES AND PENALTYS

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 02-234 SB 46 PERS RELIEF

Active $45,000.00 $19,248.50 $25,751.50 42.77%$4,842.50R 02-294 BINGO REVENUE

Active $410,000.00 $286,024.00 $123,976.00 69.76%$30,838.00R 02-295 PULL TAB REVENUE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 02-490 DEPRECIATION

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 02-861 BINGO SUPPLIES

Active $300.00 $66.00 $234.00 22.00%$0.00R 02-863 CONCESSIONS

Total  $497,404.00 $305,338.50 $192,065.50 61.39%$35,680.50

Total  BINGO FUND $497,404.00 $305,338.50 $192,065.50 61.39%$35,680.50

 SILVER SALMON DERBY

 



YTD Budget

*Revenue Guideline-Alt Code©

02/05/15 9:34 AM

Page 2

Current Period: DECEMBER 14-15

CITY OF SAND POINT

14-15 DECEMBER

YTD Balance

% of 

YTD

14-15

YTD Amt MTD Amt

14-15

Active $22,000.00 $15,323.00 $6,677.00 69.65%$0.00R 03-004 SILVER SALMON DERBY

Active $0.00 $1,650.00 -$1,650.00 0.00%$0.00R 03-230 DONATIONS

Total  $22,000.00 $16,973.00 $5,027.00 77.15%$0.00

Total  SILVER SALMON DERBY $22,000.00 $16,973.00 $5,027.00 77.15%$0.00

 CLINIC OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE

 

Active $32,777.00 $16,388.34 $16,388.66 50.00%$2,731.39R 10-257 REVENUE--FEDERAL GOV

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 10-576 FUEL

Total  $32,777.00 $16,388.34 $16,388.66 50.00%$2,731.39

Total  CLINIC OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE $32,777.00 $16,388.34 $16,388.66 50.00%$2,731.39

 CITY DOCK WAREHOUSE/DEC

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 13-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  CITY DOCK WAREHOUSE/DEC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 WASTEWATER UPGRADE/DEC

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 14-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 14-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  WASTEWATER UPGRADE/DEC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 AIEDA/ENERGY EFFIECIENCY GRANT

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 23-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  AIEDA/ENERGY EFFIECIENCY GRANT $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 61-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $174,303.00 $0.00 $174,303.00 0.00%$0.00R 61-052 TRANSFER TO

Active $3,500.00 $861.29 $2,638.71 24.61%$24.57R 61-202 FINES AND PENALTYS

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 61-203 OTHER REVENUE

Active $180,000.00 $94,213.20 $85,786.80 52.34%$14,300.17R 61-206 WATER/SEWER REVENUE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 61-234 SB 46 PERS RELIEF

Total  $357,803.00 $95,074.49 $262,728.51 26.57%$14,324.74

Total  WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS $357,803.00 $95,074.49 $262,728.51 26.57%$14,324.74

 HARBOR/PORT OPERATIONS

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-027 A/R AEB WATERLINE EXT

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-080 BUILDINGS

Active $3,000.00 $3,077.73 -$77.73 102.59%$704.60R 62-201 INTEREST

Active $0.00 $10,500.00 -$10,500.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-203 OTHER REVENUE

Active $200,000.00 $146,422.13 $53,577.87 73.21%$17,104.27R 62-210 HARBOR/MOORAGE

Active $90,000.00 $56,405.04 $33,594.96 62.67%$5,600.80R 62-211 HARBOR/TRAVELLIFT

Active $60,000.00 $36,908.15 $23,091.85 61.51%$0.00R 62-212 BOAT HARBOR/RENTS

Active $60,000.00 $15,430.78 $44,569.22 25.72%$7,310.56R 62-215 HARBOR/WHARFAGE

Active $0.00 $4,208.42 -$4,208.42 0.00%$1,939.50R 62-219 HARBOR ELEC SERVICE F

Active $0.00 $14,339.66 -$14,339.66 0.00%$1,210.65R 62-220 HARBOR/ELEC DEPOSIT

Active $18,000.00 $16,650.69 $1,349.31 92.50%$1,676.32R 62-221 HARBOR/VAN STORAGE

Active $20,000.00 $12,820.39 $7,179.61 64.10%$6,823.08R 62-222 HARBOR/STALL ELECTRIC



YTD Budget

*Revenue Guideline-Alt Code©

02/05/15 9:34 AM

Page 3

Current Period: DECEMBER 14-15

CITY OF SAND POINT

14-15 DECEMBER

YTD Balance

% of 

YTD

14-15

YTD Amt MTD Amt

14-15

Active $5,000.00 $157.89 $4,842.11 3.16%$0.00R 62-223 HARBOR/ELECTRICITY

Active $13,000.00 $720.00 $12,280.00 5.54%$70.00R 62-224 GEARSHED LOCKER REN

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-228 CITY/SNOPAC LOCKERS

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-234 SB 46 PERS RELIEF

Active $2,500.00 $1,509.57 $990.43 60.38%$228.37R 62-237 HARBOR STORAGE

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-258 REVENUE--ALEUTIANS EA

Active $25,000.00 $10,821.76 $14,178.24 43.29%$961.59R 62-285 EQUIPMENT RENTAL

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 62-299 GAIN/LOSS DISPOSITION 

Total  $496,500.00 $329,972.21 $166,527.79 66.46%$43,629.74

Total  HARBOR/PORT OPERATIONS $496,500.00 $329,972.21 $166,527.79 66.46%$43,629.74

 REFUSE COLLECTION

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 65-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 65-052 TRANSFER TO

Active $1,600.00 $531.24 $1,068.76 33.20%$15.02R 65-202 FINES AND PENALTYS

Active $140,000.00 $72,655.99 $67,344.01 51.90%$11,604.75R 65-204 REFUSE COLLECTION

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 65-234 SB 46 PERS RELIEF

Total  $141,600.00 $73,187.23 $68,412.77 51.69%$11,619.77

Total  REFUSE COLLECTION $141,600.00 $73,187.23 $68,412.77 51.69%$11,619.77

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/DC

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 68-257 REVENUE--FEDERAL GOV

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/DC $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD & PAVING PROJ

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 70-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $74,000.00 $0.00 $74,000.00 0.00%$0.00R 70-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 70-261 TRIDENT SEAFOODS

Active $2,500,000.00 $2,685,941.74 -$185,941.74 107.44%$115,117.24R 70-262 STATE OF ALASKA/SAND 

Total  $2,574,000.00 $2,685,941.74 -$111,941.74 104.35%$115,117.24

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD & PAVING PROJ $2,574,000.00 $2,685,941.74 -$111,941.74 104.35%$115,117.24

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CITY OF SP

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 71-051 TRANSFER FROM

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CITY OF SP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CSP

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 78-051 TRANSFER FROM

Total  $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

Total  SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/CSP $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00

 HARBOR CONSTRUCTION

 

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 79-051 TRANSFER FROM

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 79-255 OBLIGATION BOND

Active $0.00 $498,471.66 -$498,471.66 0.00%$0.00R 79-256 REVENUE--STATE OF ALA

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 79-258 REVENUE--ALEUTIANS EA

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 79-263 ALEUTIANS EAST BOROU

Active $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00R 79-264 CITY OF SAND POINT DES

Total  $0.00 $498,471.66 -$498,471.66 0.00%$0.00



YTD Budget

*Revenue Guideline-Alt Code©

02/05/15 9:34 AM

Page 4

Current Period: DECEMBER 14-15

CITY OF SAND POINT

14-15 DECEMBER

YTD Balance

% of 

YTD

14-15

YTD Amt MTD Amt

14-15

Total  HARBOR CONSTRUCTION $0.00 $498,471.66 -$498,471.66 0.00%$0.00

Report Total $7,155,227.00 $5,450,050.13 $1,705,176.87 76.17%$284,427.35



% YTD

BudgetMTD Amount YTD Amount YTD BalanceYTD Budget

*Fund Summary -

Budget to Actual©

CITY OF SAND POINT

DECEMBER 14-15

02/05/15 11:02 AM

Page 1

14-15 DECEMBER 14-15 14-15

14-15

FUND 01 GENERAL FUND

$3,033,143.00 $61,323.97 $1,428,702.96 47.10%$1,604,440.04Revenue

$3,026,194.00 $160,609.29 $1,248,490.94 41.26%$1,777,703.06Expenditure

-$99,285.32 $180,212.02

FUND 02 BINGO FUND

$497,404.00 $35,680.50 $305,338.50 61.39%$192,065.50Revenue

$497,404.00 $36,141.22 $269,712.75 54.22%$227,691.25Expenditure

-$460.72 $35,625.75

FUND 03 SILVER SALMON DERBY

$22,000.00 $0.00 $16,973.00 77.15%$5,027.00Revenue

$25,750.00 $0.00 $16,352.94 63.51%$9,397.06Expenditure

$0.00 $620.06

FUND 10 CLINIC OPERATIONS/MAINTENANCE

$32,777.00 $2,731.39 $16,388.34 50.00%$16,388.66Revenue

$32,777.00 $0.00 $31,971.00 97.54%$806.00Expenditure

$2,731.39 -$15,582.66

FUND 13 CITY DOCK WAREHOUSE/DEC

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00Revenue

$0.00 $0.00

FUND 14 WASTEWATER UPGRADE/DEC

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00Revenue

$0.00 $0.00

FUND 23 AIEDA/ENERGY EFFIECIENCY GRANT

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00Revenue

$0.00 $0.00

FUND 61 WATER/SEWER OPERATIONS

$357,803.00 $14,324.74 $95,074.49 26.57%$262,728.51Revenue

$357,803.00 $15,032.25 $105,562.09 29.50%$252,240.91Expenditure

-$707.51 -$10,487.60

FUND 62 HARBOR/PORT OPERATIONS

$496,500.00 $43,629.74 $329,972.21 66.46%$166,527.79Revenue

$496,500.00 $42,033.32 $320,208.07 64.49%$176,291.93Expenditure

$1,596.42 $9,764.14

FUND 65 REFUSE COLLECTION

$141,600.00 $11,619.77 $73,187.23 51.69%$68,412.77Revenue

$154,179.00 $12,610.87 $79,238.35 51.39%$74,940.65Expenditure

-$991.10 -$6,051.12

FUND 68 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD/DC

$0.00 $0.00 $0.00 0.00%$0.00Revenue

$0.00 $0.00



% YTD

BudgetMTD Amount YTD Amount YTD BalanceYTD Budget

*Fund Summary -

Budget to Actual©

CITY OF SAND POINT

DECEMBER 14-15

02/05/15 11:02 AM

Page 2

14-15 DECEMBER 14-15 14-15

14-15

FUND 70 SCHOOL LOOP ROAD & PAVING PROJ

$2,574,000.00 $115,117.24 $2,685,941.74 104.35%-$111,941.74Revenue

$2,574,000.00 $13,341.95 $2,886,318.19 112.13%-$312,318.19Expenditure

$101,775.29 -$200,376.45

FUND 79 HARBOR CONSTRUCTION

$0.00 $0.00 $498,471.66 0.00%-$498,471.66Revenue

$0.00 $57,874.10 $469,045.64 0.00%-$469,045.64Expenditure

-$57,874.10 $29,426.02

Report Total -$53,215.65 $23,150.16



TO:  Mayor Gardner 
  City Council Members 
 
FROM: Andy Varner 
  City Administrator 
 
DATE:  February 6, 2015 
 
SUBJ:  Monthly Report for February 2015 
 
Here are a few issues we’ve been working on since the last report: 
 
WATER/SEWER PROJECTS 

- Allen and I have been working with DEC to apply for funding for a couple of water and 
sewer projects. Russian Town Water Distribution and Lift Station Upgrades are the two 
projects that we will seek funding for. At this point we’re applying for a 1.5% loan, but 
that $ would only be used as a match for a grant that we’re hoping to secure for one of 
those projects later this summer.  

- ANTHC visited last month and they are in the process of designing a project for the Kelly 
Avenue outfall line and wastewater treatment. They were approved for $1.3M in funding 
for that project, and from what we hear will be under way next year. 

 
POPULATION 

- According to the State Department of Labor’s latest estimate, the population of Sand 
Point is 946. It was over 1,000 last year and had been for years. We can protest if we 
want, but that would involve manual household head counts, requiring a fair amount of 
work and coordination. A population under 1,000, however, does cut the required match 
in half for DEC water and sewer projects, from 30% to 15%. 

 
DOCK REPLACEMENT 

- The $9.5M project is uploaded into CAPSIS (the Legislature’s capital project request 
form) and has a State funding request of $750,000. A $200,000 local match is offered, 
and that could come from the City, Borough, EDA, or combination. Our lobbyist’s 
approach was to design the funding plan in this manner, so the rest of the project cost - 
$8,550,000 – would be Federal money funneled through the Legislature. That is money 
that will be accepted by the State but hasn’t been divvied up yet. It could also encompass 
Federal dollars diverted from other projects like the Juneau Access Road and Knik Arm 
Bridge that Gov. Walker wants to abandon. This is a reasonable approach in that it makes 
the State request seem all the more reasonable in this constrained budget year. 

 
DEPT of PUBLIC SAFETY / EMS 

- EATS is in the process of developing the MOA with the City to accept Medicaid 
reimbursement for ambulance rides. I had to apply for a business license for the City to 
be able to accept the Medicaid. That process took a couple of weeks to get through the 
Juneau bureaucracy, but we are closer to having that MOA. 

 
MARIJUANA LAW 

- You’ll see that City Attorney Brooks Chandler prepared a memo for the City regarding 
some of the implications of the recently passed “Marijuana Law.” The Legislature and 
state departments are still crafting rules and regulations around the initiative, but the 
attorneys recommend adopting a few changes to our code and personnel policies before 
the Law becomes effective on February 24, 2015. Small amounts of marijuana for 



City Administrator 
Monthly Report 
2/06/15 
 
 
 

personal use become lawful on that date. Over the spring and summer the Council will 
have to determine what actions we want to take regarding the commercial side of 
marijuana. The State will promulgate its regulations for commercial marijuana by 
November 24, 2015. 

 
ALEUTIAN ISLANDS NATIONAL MARINE SANCTUARY 

- The application to nominate and designate the sanctuary was denied by NOAA and 
termed insufficient. The proposers may try something again in the future, but a lot of 
groups in the Aleutians moved quickly on this to stomp it down. 

 
 

 
 

Page 2 



 11 cases were generated in January 2015  

1 warrant 

2 Driving without valid license 

1 Theft 

1 MICS  

1 DUI 

1 DV Assault 

1 Criminal Mischief 

1 Burglary 

1 Driving while license revoked 

1 DUI, Reckless Driving, Refusal, Resisting Arrest 

 

There were 5 persons jailed   

 1 warrant 

1 MICS  

2 DUI 

 1 DV assault  

 

There were 29 calls to 911  

 12 hang up or mis-dials 

   1 ambulance (2 calls-same incident) 

 2 assault 

2 criminal mischief 

 1 possible break in 

5 MOC requests 

 2 misc MOC needing info 

2 criminal complaint 

1 REDDI report 

 

Officer Calls for Service  

 1 noise complaint 

 1 drunken disturbance 

 1 civil dispute 

 1 burglary/theft 

 1 vehicle vandalism  

 

Other Officer Activity 

 1 prisoner transport to airport 

 1 ambulance assistance 

1 courtesy transport 

2 walk through at school 

3 transport person to clinic 

5 paper service 

3 suspicious vehicle 

1 misc officer information to person 

1 welfare check 

30 bar/tavern check 

   

30 traffic stops  

9 warning stop sign violation 

  2 4 wheeler citation DWOL 

1 4 wheeler warning DWOL 

1 DWOL and speed 

14 warning for speed 

1 citation for speeding 

2 driving without brake or tail lights  









Sand Point Small Boat Harbor    02-05-2015 
 
As of today all is going fine at the harbor.  All the equipment is being maintained, greased and oiled. 
 
One of the harbor crew is on vacation, for the month of February. 
 
Have been in contact with Dave Marshall (Kendrick Equipment) and he informs me that they will have a 
person come to Sand Point in early March 2015 to do an inspection of the Travelift-150 AMO. 
 
This is all I have to report at this time. 
 
Thank you, 
 
Richard Kochuten Sr. 
Harbor Master 



 

 

 

STUDENT 

REPRESENTATIVE 
 



 

HEARINGS, ORDINANCES 

AND RESOLUTIONS  



 

City of Sand Point 

 
 

ORDINANCE 2015-02 
 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING TITLE 12 OF THE SAND POINT MUNICIPAL CODE 
TO ADOPT A NEW CHAPTER 12.04 ESTABLISHING REGULATIONS GOVERNING 
MARIJUANA USE IN THE CITY OF SAND POINT 
 
WHEREAS, the State of Alaska had legalized personal use of marijuana; and 
 
WHEREAS, marijuana, as an intoxicant, is rightfully regulated by the City of Sand Point for the 
health and safety of its residents; 
 

NOW BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF SAND POINT, ALASKA: 
 
Section 1.  This is a code ordinance.   
 
Section 2.  Amendment of Title 12.  Title 12 of the Sand Point Municipal Code is hereby 
amended by adoption of a new Chapter 12.04, titled Marijuana Regulation, to read as follows: 
 

Chapter 12.04. 
MARIJUANA REGULATION 

 
12.04.010 Definitions. 
12.04.020 Local regulatory authority. 
12.04.030 Violations and remedies. 
12.04.040 Marijuana use in public prohibited. 
12.04.050 Marijuana use in vehicles prohibited. 
12.04.060 Marijuana possession and use under the age of 21 prohibited. 

 
12.04.010. Definitions. 
 
 “Marijuana” means all parts of the plant of the genus cannabis whether grown or not, the seeds 
thereof, the resin extracted from any part of the plant, and every compound, manufacture, salt, 
derivative, mixture or preparation of the plant, its seeds, or its resin, including marijuana 
concentrate. 
 
“Public place” means in or upon any city-owned property, as well as any place that the public or 
substantial numbers of persons are able to congregate or are regularly invited to enter or be upon, 

        Introduction and 1st Reading     February 10, 2015 



 

regardless of whether the property is privately or publically owned. Examples include, but are 
not limited to, streets, sidewalks, parking areas, public parks, shorelines, waterways and 
tidelands, restaurants, bars, clubs, hallways, lobbies and common areas of hotels and multi-unit 
buildings,  
 
12.04.020. Local Regulatory Authority. 
 
The city council is designated as the “local regulatory authority” as that term is used in Alaska 
Statutes Chapter 17.38 and any implementing legislation or rule-making. 
 
12.04.030 Violations and remedies. 
 
   (a)   It is unlawful for any person who operates any restaurant, eatery, bar, hotel or other 
lodging, or retail establishment to permit marijuana use in violation of this chapter. 
 
   (b)   It is unlawful for any person to consume or use marijuana in violation of this chapter. 
 
   (c)   Any person aggrieved by a violation of this chapter or the city may bring a civil action 
against a person who violates this chapter and may recover a civil penalty not to exceed three 
hundred dollars per violation. An action to enjoin a violation may be brought notwithstanding the 
availability of any other remedy. 
 
   (d)   Unless another penalty is expressly provided by this section, a violation of any provision 
of this chapter constitutes a minor offense and is punishable by a fine of $100, plus any 
surcharge required to be imposed by AS 12.55.039. 
 
12.04.040. Marijuana use in public places prohibited. 
 
Use or consumption of marijuana in a public place is prohibited. This section is not intended to 
restrict a property owner from further restricting use of marijuana. 
 
12.04.050. Marijuana use in or on motor vehicles prohibited. 
 
Marijuana use in or on motor vehicles, on the deck or in the wheelhouse of a watercraft, or in an 
aircraft is prohibited. 
 
12.04.060. Marijuana possession and use under the age of 21 prohibited. 
 
Possession and consumption of marijuana by persons less than 21 years of age are prohibited. 
 
 
Section 3. Effective Date.  This ordinance shall be effective immediately. 
 
 ENACTED THIS  ____ day of ___________, 2014. 
      
 

CITY OF SAND POINT 

        Introduction and 1st Reading     February 10, 2015 



 

       
 

____________________________________ 
       Glen Gardner Jr., Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
_________________________________ 
Shannon Sommer, City Clerk 

 
 

        Introduction and 1st Reading     February 10, 2015 







 

 

City of Sand Point 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 15-05 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SAND POINT DECLARING UPGRADES 

OF THE “RUSSIAN TOWN” WATER DISTRIBUTION SYSTEM AND 

COMMUNITY LIFT STATIONS TOP CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PRIORITIES 

FOR THE COMMUNITY FOR FY2016 

 

WHEREAS, properly functioning water and sewer infrastructure is critical to the health and 

welfare of the citizens of Sand Point; and 

 

WHEREAS, failure of aging water and sewer systems would result in serious health hazards and 

be detrimental to the community as a whole; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City Council and the general public recognize the importance of water and 

sewer infrastructure development and improvements and have made upgrading these systems a 

top priority for several years; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is not within the fiscal means of system users to provide the extensive requisite 

capital through user fees to provide for these necessary improvements without grant and other 

financial assistance; and 

 

WHEREAS, the community would be adversely affected by further deterioration and use in 

excess of design capacities of existing facilities; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City has worked with the Alaska Department of Environmental Conservation 

and the Alaska Native Tribal Health Consortium to identify two “Fix It First” projects that need 

immediate upgrades; and 

 

WHEREAS, the City and our cooperating agencies has some level of feasibility study and 

design engineering cost estimates for both projects; and 

 

WHEREAS, the city of Sand Point is eligible to participate in the ADEC Municipal Matching 

Grants program to provide funding assistance. 

 

THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, the City of Sand Point declares upgrades of the “Russian 

Town” water distribution system and community lift stations top capital improvement priorities 



 

 

for the community for fy2016. 

 

PASSED AND APPROVED on the 10
th

 day of February, 2015 by a duly constituted quorum of 

the Sand Point City Council. 

 

    CITY OF SAND POINT 

   

        ______________________________ 

Glen Gardner Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Shannon Sommer, City Clerk 

 



 

 

City of Sand Point 
 

 
 

RESOLUTION 15-06 

 

A RESOLUTION SUPPORTING THE REINSTATEMENT OF A FULL $60 MILLION 

INTO THE REVENUE SHARING FUND ON A YEARLY BASIS WITH A ONE-YEAR 

APPROPRIATION OF $8 MILLION TO THE FUND WITH AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

PRIOR TO JUNE 30, 2015 

 

WHEREAS, all of Alaska’s boroughs and cities are appreciative of the Governor and 

Legislature for the continuation of the Revenue Sharing program; and 

 

WHEREAS, since 2008, municipalities have received a total of $60 million per year to be 

divided among all boroughs, cities, and unorganized communities in the State; and 

 

WHEREAS, this money is a small share of the resource funding that is provided to the State; 

and 

 

WHEREAS, $60 million is also a small part of the total state-wide budget for the year; and 

 

WHEREAS, municipalities are political subdivisions of the State of Alaska; and 

 

WHEREAS, boroughs and cities can only raise their own revenue through increased taxes 

and/or fees, something the City of Sand Point has done recently with a voter-approved sales tax 

increase; and 

 

WHEREAS, in the past 2014 Legislative Session, the amount deposited into the Revenue 

Sharing fund dropped to $52 million; and 

 

WHEREAS, the larger municipalities use these funds to keep taxes as low as possible; and 

 

WHEREAS, the smaller municipalities use these funds to provide basic services, such as public 

safety, fire protection, harbor upkeep, fuel and maintenance in the case of Sand Point. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED that the City of Sand Point requests the Alaska 

State Legislature to reinstate the amount of $60 million on an annual basis into the Revenue 

Sharing Fund; and  

 



 

 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that the City request the Alaska State Legislature appropriate 

an additional $8 million to the fund with an effective date prior to June 30, 2015.  

 

    CITY OF SAND POINT 

   

        ______________________________ 

Glen Gardner Jr., Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 

______________________________ 

Shannon Sommer, City Clerk 

 



 

OLD BUSINESS 



CITY BUILDING ROOF 

Included in Mayor's Report.



MAINTENANCE VEHICLE 

Included in Mayor's Report.



NEW BUSINESS 





Type Of Equipment

CftyofSand Point
Equipment Rental Rates
Year Rates: Rates: Rates:

(160 hre.max)40 hre.max)(8 hre max)
Monthly Weekly Daily

1993
1993
1990
1986
1981
1981

$12,000.00
$12,000.00
$12,000.00
$15,200.00
$15,200.00

Incl

$3,000.00
$3,000.00
$3,000.00
$3,800.00
$3,800.00

inc!

$600.00
$600.00
$600.00
$930.00
$930.00

Inc!

2001

2002
1980

2008
1994
2002

$21,600.00
$21,600.00

$15^00.00
$10,400.00
$21,120.00

$5,400.00 81,080.00
$5,400.00 $1,080.00

$3,800.00 $930.00
$2,600.00 $520.00
$5,280.00 $1,056.00

2004 $44,800.00 11,200.00 $2,240.00

1994
2004
1990
2008
2001
2005

$10,400.00
NA
NA
NA
NA

$290.00

$2,600.00
$583.00
$376.00
$280.00
$280.00
$90.00

$520.00
$150.00
$100.00
$75.00
S75.00
$30.00

Rates:
<hr meter)

Hourly

$75.00
$75.00
$75.00
$95.00
S96.00

Incl

$21,600.00 $5,400.00 $1,080.00 $135.00

Trucks
F-700 Diesel Track

Western Star Dump Truck
International Dump Truck

Mack Concrete Truck
Kenworth W900 Tractor

w/Fruehauf Lowboy

Dozers
Caterpillar D6MXL

Loaders
Volvo L90D

Caterpillar 988B

0 Excavators/Backhoes
BobCat325
CaseSSOSK

Hitachi 200XL

Graders
Caterpillar 140H

Fork Lifts/Cranes
Gehl DL4

Grove RTS30 40T

Miscellaneous
Hystsr Double Drum Cmpt
Miller BobCal Welder <Oas)

Tilt Bed Trailers
Plate Compactors

Electric Jack Hammer
Power Head/Auger

Notes:
1. CHy Operator (£xtra)@ $80.00 per hour.

2. City can fuel equipment by appointment -Local Fuel Price * 20% Surcharge.

Updated 08/10/2010

$135.00
$135.00

$95.00
$65.00
$132.00

£280.00

2002 $12,800.00 $1,800.00 $480.00 $80.00
1989 $72,000.00 18,000.00 $3,600.00 $460.00

$65.00
$65.00

NA
NA
NA
NA

PJBMOH



 
City of Sand Point 

Memo 
To: Mayor Gardner, City Council members 

From: Andy Varner, Administrator 

cc:  

Date: January 27, 2015 

Re: Health plan – Medical Waiver 

  
 
The design of the Medical Waiver form is based on various things I’ve researched and discussions I’ve 
had with other cities, companies, and our health care broker. Along with the form I’ve also included a 
section of the Personnel Policies & Procedures Manual that could be amended to mention the waiver. 
 
Basically it boils down to this:  
 
It currently costs the City $1020/month per employee for their premium (see Premera invoice), 
equating to $12,240 per employee per year. That is an 18% increase per employee from this plan 
year compared to last plan year; I would anticipate we will see a similar increase for the next FY too. 
 
The “Medical Waiver” proposal is a one time, lump sum taxable payment of $6,000 per plan year. The 
employee opts out of the health plan only if they have coverage elsewhere, and the City gives them a 
payment to help them cover their other premium or associated medical expenses. We can call this 
“medical earnings.” This lump sum payment is still less than 50% of what we would be paying for the 
employee’s premium over the course of a year. 
 
I’ve talked with PERS and the $6000 is not considered wages so it would not be eligible for PERS 
contributions by the City. But, it would be considered taxable earnings. The City of Adak does 
something similar, but it offers no group health insurance and instead gives its employees $500/month 
as a medical stipend. I am not suggesting we go that route. 
 
This is not a perfect solution, but we need to look at ways of cost control. Health care costs are only 
going up, up, and up, and this is one way to help us contain the runaway costs and still not leave 
employees “out to dry”. One disclaimer, however, is that with Obamacare health plan rules are always 
changing, so the landscape of regulations can shift almost anytime. But, so far this would fall within the 
law, according to our health insurance broker and what I have seen others do.  
 

 



City of Sand Point Health Plan – Medical Waiver 

Medical Waiver - Payment for opting out of the health plan is a single lump-sum taxable payment of 
$6,000 at the beginning of each plan year (July 1). This is a pre-payment of $500 per month for the 
ensuing plan year. Employees eligible for City health coverage may select the Waiver for each plan year 
renewal. Medical Earnings will be included with regular earnings in a single payment on a scheduled pay 
date. By selecting this option during enrollment or through the course of the plan year you are attesting 
that you have medical coverage available from another provider or source.  

Receipt of “City of Sand Point Medical Waiver” earnings is a pro-rated lump-sum payment amount based 
on the number of qualifying months remaining in the calendar year at $500 per month. This advance 
payment of the Medical Waiver is subject to pro-rated repayment if termination of employment occurs 
within one year or due to opting back into the plan due to a qualifying life event. Employees who select 
this option understand that upon termination or a qualifying life event, any unearned portion of the 
Medical Waive lump-sum amount paid to the employee will be deducted from his/her final paycheck 
and/or regular payroll check and the employee authorizes the City to deduct such amount. 

 

Signed: 

 

________________________________ 

 

_________________________________ 

       Employee Name 

Attest: 

  

________________________________   __________________________________ 

Shannon Sommer, City Clerk    Date 



Section 5-E Disclosure of Benefits 
 
Policy:  It is the policy of the City to provide its employees with various welfare and 
pension benefits.

 
 Information and summaries intended to explain these benefit plans will 

be furnished to all plan participants and beneficiaries on a timely and continuing basis by 
each individual plan administrator.  The City reserves the right to modify, amend, or 
terminate its welfare and pension benefits as they apply to all current, former, and retired 
employees.

  
 The Administrator of each benefit plan has the discretionary authority to 

determine eligibility for benefits and to interpret the plan’s terms.
 

 

Comment: 
(1) The City offers

 
certain benefits to eligible employees, including health, life, 

and disability insurance and retirement plans.  Eligibility will depend upon the specific 
requirements of each benefit plan.

 
 The City also provides a number of other benefits such 

as annual leave, sick leave and holidays. 
(2) All benefits provided by the City are described in official documents 

provided by the individual plan administrator.  In addition, these documents are the only 
official and binding materials concerning the City’s welfare and pension benefits.  All 
summaries and communications, both written and verbal, must refer to them as binding 
in cases of questions or disputes. 

(3) The Mayor serves as Administrator of the City’s welfare and pension plans.  
The Administrator is responsible for all communications and disclosures concerning City 
benefits and for compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.  In addition, the 
Administrator is available, when appropriate, to answer questions concerning the benefit 
plans. 

 (4) Participant contributions to benefit plans normally will be deducted from the 
employee’s paycheck. 

(5) Employees, spouses, and dependents covered by the City’s health benefit 
plan will be notified, when appropriate, that they have the opportunity to continue their 
health care coverage, at their own expense, in certain specified situations including layoff, 
termination, reduction in hours of employment, and separation or divorce. 

(6) Full-time eligible employees may opt out of the City’s health plan by signing 
a Medical Waiver. Employees will receive a lump-sum “Medical Earnings” payment in 
exchange for opting out of the health plan. 

 
 







 

SWAMC CONFERENCE 

 



 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 



 

EXECUTIVE SESSION 



 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 



 

ADJOURNMENT 



 

FYI 












































	City of Sand Point Council Meeting
	Call to Order
	Roll Call
	Approval of Agenda
	Consent Agenda
	Reports
	Finance Officer
	Raw Fish and Sales Tax
	Bank Balances
	Expenditure Guideline
	Revenue Guidline
	Fund Summary

	Administrator
	DPS Director
	Public Works Director
	Water & Sewer Supervisor

	Harbor Master
	Student Representative

	Hearings, Ordinances and Resolutions
	Ordinance 2015-02: Marijuana Possession and Definitions
	Public Use Memo

	Resolution 15-05: Water and Sewer Projects
	Resolution 15-06: Revenue Sharing

	Old Business
	City Building Roof
	Maintenance Vehicle

	New Business
	QTT Donation Request
	Equipment Rental Rates
	Health Plan - Medical Waiver
	Medical Waiver - City of Sand Point
	Medical Waiver - PP&P Manual
	Premera Premium

	SWAMC Conference

	Public Comments
	Executive Session
	Council Comments
	Adjournment
	FYI
	SWAMC
	BCF Marijuana Memo
	FY16 Revenue Sharing Application
	Business License Application




